

ADDENDUM NO. 1

ISSUE DATE: _____

Issued By:

CITY OF STOCKTON 425 N. EL DORADO STREET STOCKTON, CA 95202-1997

This addendum forms a part to the Contract Documents. The addendum items supersede and supplement all portions of the bidding documents with which it conflicts. All workmanship, materials, appliances and equipment which may be included in the following addendum items shall be of the same relative quality as described for similar work set forth in the general or main specifications of which these addendum items shall be considered a part.

This Addendum shall be acknowledged in the space provided on the Bid/Proposal Form and is considered part of the bid documents.

1. NOTICE: Invitation for Bids (IFB), also known as Request for Sealed Bids (RFB), and Requests for Proposals(RFP) will be received by the City using electronic mail (email) until further notice in accordance with the March 12, 2020 local emergency proclamation and adopted guidelines to reduce the spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19).

2. MODIFICATIONS:

BID SUBMISSION: All IFBs, RFBs and RFPs shall be submitted via email by referencing the project number and name in the subject line of the email. The submittals should be in .pdf format and sent via email to <u>city.clerk@stocktonca.gov</u>

Late IFBs, RFBs, and RFPs will not be accepted or opened.

BID BONDS: Bid Bond requirements, when applicable, shall include a scanned copy of the Bid Bond in the emailed submittal AND the original Bid Bond shall be postmarked no later than the prescribed date and time in the bid documents.

WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS: IFBs, RFBs, and RFPs may be withdrawn by sending an email to <u>city.clerk@stocktonca.gov</u> and referencing in the subject line "WITHDRAWAL OF BID – PROJECT NUMBER AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION" as long as the request is received prior to the bid opening prescribed date and time.

BID OPENINGS: Bid openings will be live streamed from Council Chambers (no audience) at the prescribed time. Viewing is accessible at the following link and selecting "Bid Opening" for the desired project: stocktonca.gov/government/oMeetings/councilMeetings.html or by dialing the open conference line at (209) 232-4684.

BID DOCUMENTS: The following documents and/or provisions within bid documents may be impacted by this modification. As IFBs, RFBs, and RFPs vary in content, the list below includes standard documents and provisions but is not a comprehensive list. In the event a document or reference within the documents is not listed below but has reference to any of the guidelines stated in this Addendum, said documents, even when not listed, are governed by this Addendum to modify said documents.

- Notice Inviting Bids/Proposals
- Notice to Contractors
- Bid Forms
- Bid Checklist
- Bidder Security
- Withdrawal of Bids
- Public Openings of Bids

END OF DOCUMENT.





REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA (PUR 20-022)

> PROPOSALS WILL BE RECEIVED UNTIL THE HOUR OF <u>2:00 O'CLOCK P.M., THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2020,</u> IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK, FIRST FLOOR, CITY HALL, 425 NORTH EL DORADO STREET, STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 95202-1997

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) PUR 20-022

Table of Contents

ΝΟΤΙ	CE INVITING PROPOSALS1
PRO	PONENT'S CHECKLIST2
1.0	GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) PROCESS
1.2	INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL
1.3	LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCE
1.4	LOCAL EMPLOYMENT—PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTORS4
1.5	CONSEQUENCE OF SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL4
1.6	ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF PROPOSAL4
1.7	RIGHT TO CHANGE OR AMEND REQUEST4
1.8	CANCELLATION5
1.9	EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS
1.10	ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATION
1.11	DISQUALIFICATION6
1.12	INFORMAL PROPOSAL REJECTED6
1.13	CONDITIONS TO BE ACCEPTED
1.14	LICENSING REQUIREMENTS7
1.15	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS7
1.16	INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS8
1.17	APPLICABLE LAW8
1.18	METHOD OF PAYMENT8
1.19	NOTICE TO OUT-OF-STATE VENDOR8
1.20	TERM
1.21	COMPETITIVE PRICING8
1.22	FUNDING9
1.23	UNCONDITIONAL TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE9
1.24	AUDITING OF CHARGES AND SERVICES9
1.25	PROPOSAL SECURITY9
1.26	CONTRACT BONDS10
1.27	CHANGES10
1.28	AWARD10

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) PUR 20-022

1.29	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	11	
1.30	PRODUCT OWNERSHIP		
1.31	CONFIDENTIALITY	11	
1.32	OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES	11	
1.33	PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE	11	
1.34	PROPONENT'S SAFETY RESPONSIBILITY	12	
1.35	PROTEST POLICY	12	
2.0	BACKGROUND/GENERAL NATURE OF SERVICE	14	
2.1	SCOPE OF SERVICES	15	
3.0	PROPOSAL GUIDELINES, CONTENT AND FORMAT	23	
3.1	EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA	25	
3.2	PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT COSTS	26	
3.3	PROPONENT CONTACT	26	
3.4	CITY'S USE OF PROPOSAL MATERIAL	26	
3.5	REJECTION OF PROPOSAL	27	
PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS			
PROF	PONENT'S AGREEMENT	29	
NON-COLLUSION			
EXHIBIT 'A' – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS			
EXHIBIT 'B' – SAMPLE CONTRACT			

NOTICE INVITING PROPOSALS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Request for Proposals (RFP) are invited by the City of Stockton, California for specifications for <u>MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC</u> FACILITIES FEE STUDY (PUR 20-022) in strict accordance with the specifications.

The purpose of this RFP is to find and select a qualified consultant to develop an integrated document and master infrastructure plans for municipal transportation and city service facilities, recommendations for innovative and cost-effective upgrades and improvements recommended for present and future needs, and to conduct a comprehensive Development Impact Fee Study and Stormwater Connection Fee Study for the City of Stockton.

Proposal forms and specifications are available on the City's website at <u>www.stocktonca.gov/adminbid</u> and must be delivered to the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 425 North El Dorado Street, Stockton, up to but not later than, <u>Thursday, SEPTEMBER 24,</u> <u>2020, at 2:00 p.m.</u>

The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals received.

Information on Technical Data Ariana Adame, Community Development (209) 937-8350 e-mail: <u>stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov</u> Information on Process/Clarification

John Driscoll, Procurement Division (209) 937-8350 e-mail: stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov

DISCLAIMER: The City does not assume any liability or responsibility for errors/omissions in any document transmitted electronically.

Dated: AUGUST 20, 2020

ELIZA GARZA CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF STOCKTON

PROPONENT'S CHECKLIST

Did You:

- Complete the following proposal documents (FROM THIS PACKET ONLY SUBMIT PAGES 28-30 AND PLACE IN THE FRONT OF YOUR PROPOSAL):
 - *____ Sign and notarize by jurat certificate the "Non-Collusion Affidavit" form. An "All-Purpose Acknowledgment" form will not be sufficient.
 - *____ Complete and sign a "Proponent's Fee Schedule" form, (under separate cover).
 - *____ Sign the "Proponent's Agreement" form. Include (with proposal) name and e-mail address for City contact, if different from signatoree.
 - *____ Include your proposal, as outlined in these specifications.
 - *____ Submit one (1) ORIGINAL (unbound, no staples) and FOUR (4) COPIES of all proposal documents. Additionally, submit one (1) THUMB DRIVE with an electronic version of the proposal.
- *____ Review all clarifications/questions/answers on the City's website at www.stocktonca.gov/adminbid .
- *____ Deliver sealed proposal to City Hall, City Clerk's Office (1st floor), 425 North El Dorado Street, Stockton, CA 95202, before <u>SEPTEMBER 24, 2020, at 2:00 p.m</u>. Sealed proposal shall be marked "Proposal" and indicate project name, number, and proposal opening date (in the same format below). Please note that some overnight delivery services do not deliver directly to the City Clerk's Office. This could result in the proposal arriving in the City Clerk's Office after the proposal opening deadline and therefore not being accepted.
 - A) "RFP TO PROVIDE MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY"
 - B) PUR 20-022
 - C) SEPTEMBER 24, 2020

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Information on Technical Data	Information on Process/Clarification
Ariana Adame, Community Development	John Driscoll, Procurement Division
(209) 937-8350	(209) 937-8350
e-mail: stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov	e-mail: stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov

*If not completed as required, your proposal may be rejected.

DISCLAIMER: The City does not assume any liability or responsibility for errors/omissions in any document transmitted electronically.

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) PROCESS

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to request proponents to present their qualifications and capabilities to provide MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY for the City of Stockton (PUR 20-022).

1.2 INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL

Proposals shall be submitted no later than <u>2:00 p.m., on Thursday</u>, **SEPTEMBER** <u>24, 2020</u>, in the office of:

CITY CLERK CITY OF STOCKTON 425 NORTH EL DORADO STREET STOCKTON, CA 95202-1997

One (1) original and FOUR (4) copies of the proposal shall be submitted. Additionally, submit one (1) THUMB DRIVE with an electronic version of the proposal. The proposal should be firmly sealed in an envelope which shall be clearly marked on the outside, "**MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY for the City of Stockton (PUR 20-022)**." Any proposal received after the due date and time indicated may not be accepted and may be rejected and returned, unopened, to the proponent.

1.3 LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCE

Stockton Municipal Code Section 3.68.090 reads as follows:

Preference shall be given to the purchase of supplies, materials, equipment, and contractual services from local merchants, quality and price being equal. Local merchants who have a physical business location within the boundaries of San Joaquin County, and who have applied for and paid a business license tax and registration fee pursuant to Stockton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.08, License Taxes, shall be granted two (2) percent bid preference. Local merchants who have a physical business location within the boundaries of the City of Stockton, and who have applied for and paid a business license tax and registration fee pursuant to Stockton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.08, License Taxes, shall be granted for and paid a business license tax and registration fee pursuant to Stockton Municipal Code Title 5, Chapter 5.08, License Taxes, shall be granted five (5) percent bid preference. This section is intended to provide preference in the award of certain City contracts in order to encourage businesses to move into and expand within the City. (Ord. 2014-03-18-1601 C.S. § 1; prior code § 3-106.1)

1.4 LOCAL EMPLOYMENT—PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTORS

Proponent must comply with City of Stockton Municipal Code (SMC) Section 3.68.095, Ordinance No. 011-09 adopted September 1, 2009, effective October 1, 2009.

1.5 CONSEQUENCE OF SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

- A. The City shall not be obligated to respond to any proposal submitted nor be legally bound in any manner by the submission of a proposal.
- B. Acceptance by the City of a proposal obligates the proponent to enter into an agreement with the City.
- C. An agreement shall not be binding or valid against the City unless or until it is executed by the City and the proponent.
- D. Statistical information contained in these documents is for informational purposes only. The City shall not be responsible for the accuracy of said data. City reserves the right to increase or decrease the project scope.

1.6 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF PROPOSAL

The City reserves the right to select the successful proposal and negotiate an agreement as to the scope of services, the schedule for performance and duration of the services with proponent whose proposal is most responsive to the needs of the City. Further, the City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, or alternate proposals, or waive any informality or irregularity in the proposal as is in the City's best interest.

The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, or portions thereof, received in response to the Request or to negotiate separately with any source whatsoever, in any manner necessary, to serve the best interests of the City. Additionally, the City may, for any reason, decide not to award an agreement as a result of this Request.

Non-acceptance of any proposal shall not imply that the proposal was deficient. Rather, non-acceptance of any proposal will mean that another proposal was deemed to be more advantageous to the City or that the City decided not to award an agreement as a result of this Request.

1.7 RIGHT TO CHANGE OR AMEND REQUEST

The City reserves the right to change the terms and conditions of this Request. The City will notify potential proponent(s) of any material changes by posting on the City's website. No one is authorized to amend any of the Request

requirements in any respect, by an oral statement, or to make any representation or interpretation in conflict with its provisions. If necessary, supplementary information and/or clarifications/questions/answers will be posted on the City's website at <u>www.stocktonca.gov/adminbid</u>. Failure of any proponent to not have received such information and/or clarifications/questions/answers shall not relieve such proponent from any obligation under his/her proposal as submitted.

Any exceptions to this Proposal shall be clearly stated in writing.

1.8 CANCELLATION

The City reserves the right to rescind award of the contract at any time before execution of the contract by both parties if rescission is deemed to be in City's best interest. In no event shall City have any liability for the rescission of award. The proponent assumes the sole risk and responsibility for all expenses connected with the preparation of its proposal.

1.9 EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS

The submission of a proposal shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the proponent that it has investigated all aspects of the Request, that it is aware of the applicable facts pertaining to the Request process and its procedures and requirements, and that it has read and understands the Request. No request for modification of the provisions of the proposal shall be considered after its submission on the grounds the proponent was not fully informed as to any fact or condition. Statistical information which may be contained in the Request or any addendum is for informational purposes only. The City disclaims any responsibility for this information which may subsequently be determined to be incomplete or inaccurate.

1.10 ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATION

The City will not be responsible for, nor be bound by, any oral instructions, interpretations, or explanations issued by the City or its representatives. Any request for clarifications/questions/answers of this Request shall be made in writing/e-mail and deliverable to:

CITY OF STOCKTON ATTN: JOHN DRISCOLL PROCUREMENT DIVISION 400 E MAIN, 3RD FLOOR STOCKTON, CA 95202 stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov

Such request for clarifications/questions/answers shall be delivered to the City by **September 3, 2020.** Any City response to a request for clarifications/questions/answers will be posted on the City's website at

<u>www.stocktonca.gov/adminbid</u> by **September 17, 2020** and will become a part of the Request. The proponent should await responses to inquiries prior to submitting a proposal.

1.11 **DISQUALIFICATION**

Any of the following may be considered cause to disqualify a proponent without further consideration:

- A. Evidence of collusion among proponents;
- B. Any attempt to improperly influence any member of the evaluation panel;
- C. Any attempt to communicate in any manner with a City of Stockton elected official during the RFP/bid process will, and shall be, just cause for disqualification/rejection of proponent's proposal/Proponent's bid submittal and considered non-responsive.
- D A proponent's default in any operation of a professional services agreement which resulted in termination of that agreement; and/or
- E. Existence of any lawsuit, unresolved contractual claim, or dispute between proponent and the City.
- F. No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make or file or be interested in more than one bid for the same supplies, services, or both; provided, however, that subcontract bids to the principal bidders are excluded from the requirements of this section: Section 3.68.120 of the Municipal Code.

1.12 INFORMAL PROPOSAL REJECTED

A proposal shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with the provisions of these Request instructions and specifications. Any alteration, omission, addition, variance, or limitation of, from, or to a proposal may be sufficient grounds for rejection of the proposal. The City has the right to waive any defects in a proposal if the City chooses to do so. The City may not accept a proposal if any document or item necessary for the proper evaluation of the proposal is incomplete, improperly executed, indefinite, ambiguous, or missing.

1.13 CONDITIONS TO BE ACCEPTED IF ANY WORK IS SUBCONTRACTED

- A. The proponent assumes full responsibility, including insurance and bonding requirements, for the quality and quantity of all work performed.
- B. If proponent's supplier(s) and/or subcontractor's involvement requires the use of a licensed, patented, or proprietary process, the proponent of the

process is responsible for assuring that the subcontractor, supplier, and/or operator have been properly authorized to use the process or for providing another process which is comparable to that which is required prior to submission of a proposal.

1.14 LICENSING REQUIREMENTS

Any professional certifications or licenses that may be required will be the sole cost and responsibility of the successful proponent.

Proponent must employ engineers who possess a Professional Engineering certification (P.E.) from an accredited institution to perform the work specified within these documents

A City of Stockton Business license may be required for this project. Please contact the City of Stockton Business License Division at (209) 937-8313.

1.15 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Proponent/Bidder, at Proponent's/Bidder's sole cost and expense and for the full term of the resultant contract or any extension thereof, shall obtain and maintain at least all of the insurance requirements listed in attached Exhibit 1 (or Exhibit A).

All coverage shall be provided by a carrier authorized to transact business in California and shall be primary. All policies, endorsements, and certificates shall be subject to approval by the Risk Manager of the City to Stockton as to form and content. These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by the Risk Manager.

Maintenance of proper insurance coverage is a material element of this contract, and failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be treated as a material breach of contract.

The Proponent shall assert that these insurance requirements will be met as part of their proposal response. Failure to comply with these insurance requirements may result in a proposal being deemed unresponsive. Proponent shall satisfy these insurance requirements concurrently with the signing of the contract prior to commencement of work. It is strongly suggested that insurance requirements be reviewed with Proponent's broker to ensure any additional costs are included in the proposal pricing component.

Any questions pertaining to insurance requirements, please contact City of Stockton Risk Services at (209) 937-5037.

1.16 INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify the City of Stockton, its Mayor, Council, officers, representatives, agents, employees and volunteers, against any and all liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising from all acts or omissions to act of contractor or its officers, agents, or employees in rendering services under this contract; excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses arising from the City of Stockton's sole negligence or willful acts. The duty to defend and the duty to indemnify are separate and distinct obligations. The indemnification obligations of this section shall survive the termination of this agreement.

1.17 APPLICABLE LAW

Applicable law shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be proper in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of San Joaquin, Stockton Branch, or, for actions brought in Federal Court, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California, Sacramento Division.

1.18 METHOD OF PAYMENT

Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after invoices are received and accepted by the City Manager. Invoices are to be rendered monthly.

1.19 NOTICE TO OUT-OF-STATE VENDOR

It is the policy of the City of Stockton to pay all applicable California sales/use tax directly to the State Board of Equalization (BOE) pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code 7051.3. The City of Stockton will self-accrue all sales/use tax on purchases made from out-of-state vendors.

Sales and use tax on purchases made by the City of Stockton from all companies located outside California and whose products are shipped from out of state will be remitted to the BOE directly by the City under permit number <u>SR</u> <u>KHE 28-051174 DP</u>. Please do not include sales/use tax on the invoice that you submit to the City of Stockton.

Questions regarding the City of Stockton's payment of sales/use tax can be directed to the City of Stockton's Procurement Division at (209) 937-8357.

1.20 <u>TERM</u>

Five (5) year contract.

1.21 <u>COMPETITIVE PRICING</u>

Proponent warrants and agrees that each of the charges, economic or product terms or warranties granted pursuant to this Contract are comparable to or better than the equivalent charge, economic or product term or warranty being offered to any similarly situated commercial or other government customer of proponent. If proponent enters into any arrangements with another customer of proponent to provide product under more favorable charges, economic or product terms or warranties, proponent shall immediately notify CITY of such change and this Contract shall be deemed amended to incorporate the most favorable charges, economic or product terms or warranties.

1.22 FUNDING

Any contract which results from this Request will terminate without penalty at the end of the fiscal year in the event funds are not appropriated for the next fiscal year. If funds are appropriated for a portion of the fiscal year, this contract will terminate without penalty, at the end of the term for which funds are appropriated.

1.23 UNCONDITIONAL TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The City may terminate the resultant Agreement at any time by mailing a notice in writing to Contractor. The Agreement shall then be deemed terminated, and no further work shall be performed by Contractor. If the Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor shall be paid for the work actually completed at the time the notice of termination is received.

1.24 AUDITING OF CHARGES AND SERVICES

The City reserves the right to periodically audit all charges and services made by the successful proponent to the City for services provided under the contract. Upon request, the proponent agrees to furnish the City with necessary information and assistance.

1.25 PROPOSAL SECURITY

Every proposal offered shall be accompanied by an acceptable financial instrument (proponent's bond, certified or cashier's check) in favor of and payable to the City of Stockton for an amount not less than <u>N/A</u>. A proponent's bond shall be executed by a surety authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the State of California, made out in favor of the CITY OF STOCKTON for an amount not less than <u>N/A</u> and no proposal shall be considered unless accompanied by such certified or cashier's check or proponent's bond.

If proponent elects to accompany their proposal with a proponent's bond, then said bond shall state on its face that, "in the event the person, firm, or corporation is awarded the contract and the said proponent shall fail, neglect, or refuse to enter into a contract to said equipment, materials or services, then the amount therein

mentioned in the proponent's bond accompanying the proposal of said person, firm, or corporation shall be declared to be forfeited to the City."

In the event that the person, firm, or corporation to whom said contract may be awarded fails, neglects, or refuses to enter into contract to furnish said service, equipment or material, as hereinbefore provided within thirty (30) days of award, then the cashier's check, or certified check and the amount therein mentioned, accompanying the proposal of said person, firm, or corporation, shall be declared to be forfeited to said City; or, if non-complying proponent has accompanied their proposal with a proponent's bond, appropriate legal action to collect the proponent's bond shall be undertaken.

As information, the City will <u>NOT</u> accept company or personal checks for proposal security.

1.26 CONTRACT BONDS

The successful proponent will be required to furnish the City of Stockton with a Faithful Performance Bond in the amount of $\underline{N/A}$ which shall be furnished concurrently with the signing of the contract.

The surety which provides the bond(s) must be authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the State of California.

Said bonds shall be executed by the surety and contractor concurrently with the signing of the contract. The form and content of said bonds must be approved by the appropriate City departments.

All alterations, extension of time, extra and additional work, and other changes authorized by these specifications or any part of the contract shall be made without securing the consent of the surety or sureties on the contract bonds.

1.27 CHANGES

The City's Representative has the authority to review and recommend or reject change orders and cost proposals submitted by the proponent or as recommended by the proponent's project manager, pursuant to the adopted City of Stockton Standard Specifications.

1.28 <u>AWARD</u>

Upon conclusion of the Request process, a contract may be awarded for **MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY** for the City of Stockton.

The City reserves the right to select the successful proponent and to negotiate terms of a contract with the proponent whose proposal is most responsive to the

needs of the City. Further, the City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, or alternate proposals, or waive any informality in the proposal as is in the City's best interest.

1.29 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Liquidated damages in the amount of $\underline{N/A}$ dollars per day will be assessed per each working day over the $\underline{N/A}$ allotted for this project.

1.30 PRODUCT OWNERSHIP

Any documents, products or systems resulting from the contract will be the property of the City of Stockton.

1.31 CONFIDENTIALITY

If proponent believes that portions of a proposal constitute trade secrets or confidential commercial, financial, geological, or geophysical data, then the proponent must so specify by, at a minimum, stamping in bold red letters the term "CONFIDENTIAL" on that part of the proposal which the proponent believes to be protected from disclosure. The proponent must submit in writing specific detailed reasons, including any relevant legal authority, stating why the proponent believes the material to be confidential or a trade secret. Vague and general claims as to confidentiality will not be accepted. The City will be the sole judge as to whether a claim is general and/or vague in nature. All offers and parts of offers that are not marked as confidential may be automatically considered public information after the contract is awarded. The proponent is hereby put on notice that the City may consider all or parts of the offer public information under applicable law even though marked confidential.

1.32 OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

If mutually agreeable to all parties, the use of any resultant contract/purchase order may be extended to other political subdivisions, municipalities, or tax supported agencies.

Such participating governmental bodies shall make purchases in their own name, make payment directly to successful Proponent and be liable directly to the successful Proponent, holding the City of Stockton harmless.

1.33 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE

A pre-proposal conference will be held on **AUGUST 27, 2020 at 10:30 a.m.** promptly via Microsoft Teams. Interested proponents shall RSVP to <u>stocktonbids@stocktonca.gov</u> by **AUGUST 26, 2020 at 12:00 p.m.** All interested proponents who RSVP before the deadline will be emailed a pre-proposal conference invitation. Interested Proponents arriving at 10:31 a.m. or later will not

be admitted.

1.34 PROPONENT'S SAFETY RESPONSIBILITY

The scope of work for this project has been reviewed for special risks or hidden dangers that may be present to employees of the proponent or any subcontractor. The proponent is required to identify, notify employees, and implement special precautions to prevent injuries to employees. Additionally, the proponent is required to identify its skill, experience, and equipment in dealing with the types of risk to employees.

1.35 PROTEST POLICY

Protest and Appeal Procedures. In order to maintain fairness and impartiality, the City of Stockton has established a solicitation protest policy and procedure.

- A. Protest Procedure
 - 1. All protests must be in writing and stated as a formal protest.
 - 2. A casual inquiry, complaint, or a statement of intent to protest that does not provide the facts and issues, and does not comply with the content requirements or deadlines, will not be considered or acted upon as a protest.
 - 3. The protest must contain a complete statement of the basis for the protest and must include all relevant supporting documentation.
 - 4. The solicitation process and procedures, including evaluation criteria, shall not be proper grounds for protest. Concerns related to the solicitation process and procedures, including evaluation criteria, should be raised and addressed, if at all, prior to the bid/proposal due date and time to allow adjustments before evaluation of the solicitation.
 - 5. Protests must be filed with the City's Chief Financial Officer, or designee, at the address listed in the Solicitation Protest FAQ sheet and Procurement Procedure Manual, not later than five (5) days after the date the City mails the Letter of Intent to Award .
 - 6. Deliveries of the protest by hand, mail, email or fax are acceptable.
 - 7. The City is not responsible for lost or misplaced protests, or to assure the protest is received within the protest deadlines
 - 8. The party challenging the award decision to bear the burden of proof of material error to justify invalidation of the proposed award.
- B. Protest Review
 - 1. The Chief Financial Officer or designee shall respond in writing at least generally to each material issue raised in the protest.

- 2. The Chief Financial Officer's, or designee 's, administrative decision may be appealed in writing to the City Manager no later than (5) business days after the date the Chief Financial Officer's, or designee's, the decision is mailed to the protesting party.
- 3. The City Manager shall review and decide the appeal based on the grounds and documentation set forth in the original protest to the Chief Financial Officer, or designee.
- 4. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses involved in the protest and appeal process, including any subsequent litigation .
- 5. The City Manager's administrative decision is final. After the City Manager issues the final administrative decision, the time in which judicial review of the decision must be sought shall be governed by California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094 or as such section may be amended from time to time.
- 6. If the protested procurement involves state or federal funds, the Chief Financial Officer, or designee, shall give notice to the interested party that he or she has the right to appeal to the appropriate agency, which shall be identified by name and address. An appeal hereunder shall be filed with the appropriate agency within five (5) working days of the dispatch of rejection notices to the interested party(ies).
- 7. The City may require the protesting party to submit a City Council approved non-refundable protest fee to cover the administrative cost of processing the protest.

Bidders, proposers, and contractors wishing to protest or appeal a procurement or contracting decision by the City must follow the procedures provided by this section. The City will not review protests or appeals that are not submitted in accordance with these provisions and procedures.

A copy of this policy can be requested from the procurement specialist noted in Section 1.10 of this document.

2.0 BACKGROUND/GENERAL NATURE OF SERVICE

The purpose of this RFP is to find and select a qualified consultant to develop an integrated document and master infrastructure plans for municipal transportation and city service facilities, recommendations for innovative and cost-effective upgrades and improvements recommended for present and future needs, and to conduct a comprehensive Development Impact Fee Study and Stormwater Connection Fee Study for the City of Stockton.

The qualified consultant will develop master infrastructure plans for transportation (streets, traffic signals, bridges, etc.) and city service facilities (libraries, fire stations, city offices, police stations, libraries, recreation centers, parkland). Development of master utility plans (water, sewer, and stormwater) will be completed through a separate scope and consultant contract managed by the Municipal Utilities Department. The consultant selected to complete this scope of work will collaborate with said consultant and have access to the final master utility infrastructure plans, for the purpose of preparing mitigation fees including a Stormwater Connection Fee Study.

In accordance with the Mitigation Fee Act (California Government Code Section 66000 et seq.) also known as Assembly Bill (AB) 1600, the City currently assesses a variety of development impact fees on new development to help pay for infrastructure improvements that accommodate new development activity. The City desires to update its impact fee program to ensure compliance with state law. The City is now seeking the services from a qualified firm to:

- Update the impact fees to reflect the City's recently updated 2040 General Plan.
- Review the current development impact fees as well as all types of current or planned infrastructure and service facilities to identify potential new or revised mitigation fees to accommodate city development in conformance with the 2040 General Plan goals and policies, as well as other applicable regional and local transportation, facility or Capital Improvement Plans.
- Conduct a detailed review to develop and propose a new Stormwater Connection Fee and develop a recommended rate structure that provides sufficient revenue to fund Stormwater costs. The Master Infrastructure Plans for the Sewer, Water, and Stormwater, as mentioned above, will be developed through a separate contract, managed by the Municipal Utilities Department, and may not be awarded to the same consultant as indicated in this scope of work. The Consultant awarded for this scope will work in collaboration with the Master Infrastructure Stormwater Plans consultant and be given access

to the final Master Infrastructure Stormwater Plan for the purposes of developing a new Stormwater Connection Fee

General Information about the City's Development Impact Fees

The City originally adopted Development Impact Fees (also known as the Public Facility Fees) in 1988. The City also adopted a comprehensive general plan update in 1990. The fees adopted at that time remained in place at 1988 levels until 2003. In 2003, the City increased each fee by 35% to reflect an inflation increase from 1988 to 2003, based on the Engineering News Record building cost index. Although there have been updates to sections of the program, a comprehensive fee nexus study has not been undertaken and approved since 1988. On December 4, 2018, the Envision Stockton 2040 General Plan was adopted. The City is now proposing to comprehensively update its Development Impact Fees after establishing new General Plan goals and policies consistent with levels of services applicable for new growth and infill areas.

Current City development impact fees collected include:

- City Office Space
- Police Station Expansion
- Fire Stations
- Libraries
- Community Recreation Center
- Park Land
- Street Improvements
- Traffic Signals
- Streetlights
- Street Trees
- Administration

2.1 <u>SCOPE OF SERVICES</u>

The Scope of Services includes the development of master infrastructure plans for transportation (streets, traffic signals, bridges, etc.) and city service facilities (libraries, fire stations, city offices, police stations, library, recreation centers, parkland); all necessary analyses and documentation to develop and support a comprehensive Public Facilities Fee Nexus Study update; and Stormwater Connection Fee study. Consultant's Public Facilities Fee Nexus Study must show that a valid method was used for imposing the fees, a reasonable relationship between the fees charged and the burden posed by the development project on which the fees are imposed (nexus), and otherwise meet the requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act.

The Public Facilities Fee study shall include, at a minimum, the following tasks:

Task 1: Preliminary Work

Consultant shall schedule a kickoff meeting with the City to review project requirements and previous development impact fee studies, discuss issues with City staff, present rationale for recommended changes, finalize the project approach, and confirm the project schedule. Additional follow-up meetings may be required in order to resolve questions and finalize Task 1 objectives.

Task 2: Data Collection and Analysis

Consultant shall review existing public facilities in areas subject to this study and work with City staff to project new or expanded public facilities needed as a result of future development. Consultant shall assist staff in the review, assessment, and development of cost estimates for new and expanded capital facilities and make recommendations as appropriate.

Task 3: Determine Land Uses/Growth Forecasts/Market Study/Infrastructure Plans

To ensure appropriate cost allocation, the Consultant shall develop accurate land use data and growth forecasts consistent with goals of the City's 2040 General Plan and detailed Master Infrastructure, transportation, service facility, or Capital Improvement Plans (CIP). The Consultant shall refine City population and employment forecasts to calculate new development to which improvement costs will be attributable. The growth forecasts shall be converted into land use types (referencing those used by existing fee programs) to aid the administration of the fees. A citywide real estate market study is to be developed with these forecasts to help identify areas of focus regarding infrastructure investment. The City's adopted Economic Development Strategic Plan will also be instrumental as a resource to identify those infrastructure investments. It is preferred that a local/regional forecasting agency or organization is used to confirm forecasting determinations.

Subsequently, detailed Master Infrastructure Plans will be developed at the Consultant's recommendations (excluding Water, Sewer and Stormwater) and pursuant to the requirements outlined in this RFP to assist staff toward targeted areas for reinvestment. The Master Infrastructure Plans for the Sewer, Water, and Stormwater will be developed through a separate contract, managed by the Municipal Utilities Department, and may not be the awarded to the same consultant as indicated in this scope of work. The consultant awarded the contract for this scope of work will work in collaboration with the consultant chosen to conduct the Stormwater Master Infrastructure Plans. The consultant awarded for this scope of work will have access to the Master Infrastructure Master Plans for Water. Sewer. and Stormwater to assist in developing fee structure methodology. These detailed Master Infrastructure Plans will assist in removing uncertainties in the development process to meet general plan goals with a streamlined response toward the real estate market. As an example, targeted infill areas will have different infrastructure needs. Certain geographic areas may have existing capacities in street improvements but have limited capacities in sanitary sewer and/or drainage capacities. Other geographic areas may have water and sewer capacities but have

limited street improvements. These needs must be identified for targeted geographic areas for reinvestment, either based on general plan goals or economic development goals. A strategic approach should be utilized to determine a phased approach wherever necessary.

Task 4: Cost Allocation

Task 4.1 Determine Costs Attributable to Future Development

Consultant shall develop a methodology to identify current facilities' existing deficiencies to meet the needs of proposed projects and improvements and assist City staff to determine the portion of estimated costs attributable to new development versus the portion attributable to existing deficiencies.

Task 4.2 Evaluate Current Allocation Factors and Recommend Alternate Methods. The Consultant shall review and evaluate the costs and allocation factors used for existing fee programs and provide recommended alternatives.

Task 5: Develop Nexus and Calculate Impact Fees

Task 5.1 Calculate Fees

The Consultant shall develop models to create the nexus between unfunded improvement costs and projected future development based upon the allocation factors identified in Task 4.2. The models shall be designed to easily allow City staff or policymakers to refine the included facilities or allocation factors at any point during the public outreach and approval process. In addition, the models should consider existing deficiencies and any existing funding sources.

Task 5.2 Calculate Both Land and Facilities Fees

The City recognizes there are two distinct components to a public facility project: the capital construction component and the land acquisition component. The Consultant shall develop models designed to allocate costs to each of these categories and determine if separate recommendations for the annual adjustments to the separate land and facilities components of the fees are necessary and provide those recommendations. The City also recognizes that different types of facilities may require different adjustment factors. The Consultant shall explain why the same or different adjustment(s) are, in their opinion, a better option for the City. Additionally, fee calculations shall include an administrative component that addresses staff time to manage the program.

Task 6: Preparation and Comparative Fee Study

Prepare and provide a report that documents fee study results, including but not limited to, a description of the overall methodology, findings, supporting justification, recommended development impact fee(s) and the calculations that provide the nexus between development impact fee recommendations and new development. The proposed development impact fee analysis shall consider existing fees and compare to surrounding and comparable cities (comparison cities to be provided by the City). The comparative fee study should also include an

analysis and/or discussion of incentives used by the comparative cities to entice development in infill and/or disadvantaged designated areas of the city. The proposed fee structure should include options for an automatic inflation mechanism and recommendations.

Task 7: Public Outreach

The Stockton City Council has expressed a goal of performing extensive community outreach to residents and customers for new programs, services, events, etc. As such, the Nexus Study Update project will include substantial outreach to stakeholders. Proposal should include what tasks will be the consultant's responsibilities, such as: reserving locations, providing meeting minutes, advertising of meetings, providing a variety of meeting formats, etc.

Meetings and Presentations

The Consultant shall attend, gather input and/or present findings at the following meetings (at a minimum):

- One kick-off meeting with City staff
- 10-15 Project status meetings with City staff (as needed)
- Six Public outreach meetings
- 10 meetings amongst Planning Commission (if applicable), and City Council

Unless otherwise determined by the City, the Consultant shall plan on meetings being held at City of Stockton City Hall, Permit Center, and/or virtually.

Tentative Work Schedule

The Consultant is expected to submit a detailed schedule for the proposed work plan. The City's proposed milestones are included below, Consultants shall respond with any expected deviations from this schedule:

- Award of Contract
- Kickoff Meeting with City Staff
- Commence review of work completed by City Staff including CIP and other preliminary work
- Review and, if necessary, revise cost allocation factors
- Develop model(s) and infrastructure master plans, calculate fees
- Provide initial calculations of fees and draft Nexus
- Public outreach meeting with the City's Industry Working Groups to discuss draft Nexus
- Receive comments and revise draft
- Public outreach meeting with the City's Industry Working Groups discuss final Nexus
- Presentation of final study to City Council
- Fee Rates Effective (at least 60 days after adoption by Council)

Task 8: Final Report & Presentation

Consultant should provide documentation of the studies for the development impact fee calculations. Consultant should review findings and fee outcomes with City staff, incorporate changes and finalize report. A hard copy, along with an editable electronic copy of the final report shall be submitted and shall include the following:

- An Executive Summary.
- Analysis of existing development impact fees with recommendations for updating fees.
- Discussion of "pros and cons" of updating development impact fees, discussing the relationship between the fees' use and the type of project on which the fees would be imposed.
- Recommended updates to development impact fees schedules, including calculations that provide the legal Nexus between the fee recommendations and new development as required by law.
- Comparison of proposed fees with neighboring similar jurisdictions
- Proposed method of ongoing administration of the program, including adjusting fees over time, periodic reviews of program, program implementation, and administrative fee component.
- Consultant shall ensure the study meets all the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and will prepare and/or file any necessary documentation required as a result of the study.

Task 9: Implementation

Provide recommendations to update the Public Facility Fees Administrative Guidelines and provide a new document to replace the current document. Suggestions should follow best practices and industry standards. This review and set of recommendations should include a template for a reimbursement agreement and recommendations for processing and implementing procedures.

A. Required Services:

Review the following City documents:

- Current Development Impact Fees Administrative Guidelines
- Capital Improvement Program
- Regional & Federal Transportation Improvement Plans for Stockton
- 2040 General Plan and EIR
- Other departmental fee schedules
- Development Impact Fee Studies since 1991
- Engineering reports, related technical documents, and Infrastructure Master Plans

Additional documents, as determined by the City, may be added.

- B. Findings and Fees: Provide sufficient information and the necessary findings to help the City determine the development impact fees, based on the proposed infrastructure requirements to support the City's General Plan growth projections and its detailed master infrastructure plans. The Consultant will work with City staff to determine other supporting infrastructure (i.e., equipment, vehicles, etc.) or other operational services that could rightfully be included in the fee program to ensure the costs of such supporting infrastructure are paid by development.
- C. Best Practices: Recommend best practices to help ensure better collections. This includes making recommendations on how to improve the Public Facilities Fee Administrative Guidelines.
- D. Report Deliverables: Prepare a final report submitted to the City containing background information, methodology, findings, and recommendations. More specifically, the Consultant shall prepare a report containing, but not limited to, the following:
 - Background information.
 - A description of the overall methodology.
 - Supporting justification.
 - Calculations that demonstrate the legal Nexus between recommended fees and the impact created by new development.
 - Relationship between the fee's use and the type of project on which it would be imposed.
 - Purpose of the Fee.
 - How the fee would be used.
 - Justified inflation mechanism to keep up with market changes
 - Description of the relationship between the need for any additional facilities and the type of development project on which the fee would be imposed.
 - Any additional matters that City staff should be made aware of, findings, and recommendations.
 - If the Consultant feels that additional tasks are warranted, they must be clearly identified in the Consultant's proposal.
- E. Infrastructure Master Plans: The integrated detailed Infrastructure Master Plans shall provide the following:
 - A comprehensive Master Plan for Road, and Bridge Infrastructure, in accordance with the current General Plan.
 - A documented review and condition assessment of the City's existing road infrastructure (including non-motorized), traffic signals, street trees, streetlights, fire stations, libraries, recreation centers, police station, city offices and parkland.
 - A study of the impacts of current and potential future demands on the existing roads, traffic signals, street trees, fire stations, libraries,

recreation centers, police stations, city offices and parkland; and how these systems integrate and affect each other via applicable modeling.

- A recommendation of prioritized necessary upgrades to meet current and potential future demands, with emphasis given to the next five and 10 years.
- An implementation strategy and cost estimates for the proposed upgrades in a phased approach.
- A financial model to demonstrate the implications of the proposed capital expenditures on the long-term financial sustainability of the City.

The Infrastructure Master Plans will thereby assist the City to:

- Address the City's needs and requirements for the continuous provision of a safe and efficient road structure network, with optimal maintenance and rehabilitation schedules, to include traffic signals.
- Address the City's needs and requirement for the continuous provision of a safe and efficient park infrastructure network, with optimal maintenance and rehabilitation schedules.
- Address the City's needs and equipment for the continuous provision of a safe and efficient street tree network, with optimal maintenance and replacement schedules.
- The proposal shall include up to two (2) years after the completion of the final Infrastructure Master Plans of additional technical support to provide analysis of future projects as well as any adjustments that need to be made to the Public Facility Fee Nexus Study.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The successful Consultant shall possess the requisite technical skills to deal with the complex matters to be addressed in the Detailed Infrastructure Master Plan process and shall also possess the social skills required to work closely and collaboratively with City staff, the public, agencies, and stakeholders in a professional manner. In addition to technical qualifications and considerable municipal infrastructure planning experience, the Consultant shall exhibit such skills as timeliness, diplomacy, flexibility, tact, strong communication ability (both verbal and written), and an understanding and respect for City culture, and the people who work within it.

The Consultant shall examine and review the City's infrastructure and associated existing reports and studies and create a series of recommendations to address future upgrades, revisions to, and/or expansion of each system. The review shall include analysis on the capacity, resiliency, and growth potential of the existing system to determine any deficiencies and to identify capital projects required to accommodate existing deficiencies or meet expansion/revision needs of the system. The review shall also include potential climate change impacts on infrastructure.

Deliverables for the Infrastructure Master Plans include:

- Updated Master Plans for Roads (Streets), Traffic Signals and Bridges.
- A review of all previous and concurrent studies, master plans, documents, and records as a starting point and background from which to move forward.
- A condition assessment of the current infrastructure including existing road infrastructure (including non-motorized such as bikeways), traffic signals, streetlights, street trees, fire stations, libraries, recreation centers, police station, city offices and parkland.
- Traffic analysis, including non-motorized.
- Identification and analysis of any current or projected future deficiencies in capacity.
- Recommendations for future expansion.
- For each system, an economic/financial analysis, taking into the consideration the estimated costs and timing of the capital projects identified, the City's existing available operation and maintenance funds, interest earning/losses and time-value of money, and forecast required increases of fee collection.
- A summarized list of recommended upgrade projects, based on criticality, to meet both current and potential future needs, including cost estimates in current dollars, with particular emphasis given to the next five- and 10-year horizons.
- A summary of the study findings and recommendations shall be included in the final copy of the plans.

Stormwater Connection Fee Study: The Stormwater Connection Fee study shall include, at a minimum, the following tasks: Assuming a uniform rate and connection fee will be applied to the stormwater providers, proponents shall:

- Conduct a detailed review to develop and propose a new Stormwater Connection Fee and develop a recommended rate structure to provide sufficient revenue to fund Stormwater costs. The rate structure shall include a stormwater rate adjustment and a new fee for new service locations; and
- Be equitable in nature, reflect the cost of services and take into consideration any existing and/or future reserve fund and rate stabilization policies and practices.
- Supply a project schedule for developing the recommended rate structure with identifiable deliverables, including any preliminary and final reports.
- Provide an easy-to-use electronic rate model in MS Excel which may be readily controlled to consider alternative scenarios.

- Prepare any and all necessary reports required by law or otherwise (including but not limited to requirements set forth in California Government Code Section 66001) for adoption of the recommended rate structure and issuance of municipal bonds.
- In cooperation with the City's Financial Advisor, Public Outreach Consultant and City staff, provide information and assistance as it pertains to any applicable requirements set forth in Proposition 218.

2.2 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1. City will provide access to City maps, conceptual drawings, records, studies, plans and other documents relating to the project.
- 2. City will provide the code building inspection and any special inspection required.
- **3.** City will provide Master Infrastructure Master Plans for Water, Sewer, and Stormwater to assist in developing fee structure methodology.

3.0 PROPOSAL GUIDELINES, CONTENT AND FORMAT

The City of Stockton uses a qualifications-based selection process in obtaining these services. In order for the City to properly evaluate the Proponents' qualification to perform this work, the proposals shall include, as a minimum, the following information:

- A. Evidence of the Proponent's ability to be responsive to this project in regard to timeliness and expertise, including availability of staff proposed to be assigned.
- B. The Proponents are encouraged to expand on the Scope of Work to demonstrate their expertise. Evaluation of the proposals will be based on qualifications, the experience of staff proposed to be assigned to the project, references and thoroughness of the proponent's response to the Scope of Services.
- C. Such additional information that the Proponent may feel would be pertinent to assist the City of Stockton in making its final decision.
- D. Please submit one (1) original and FOUR (4) copies of your proposal/qualifications. Additionally, submit one (1) THUMB DRIVE with an electronic version of the proposal. The original should be unbound to allow us to reproduce your proposal, as needed.

3.0.1 <u>Cover Letter</u>

Submit a letter on your company letterhead addressing the proposal and format. The letter should be signed by an officer of the firm authorized to bind the firm to all comments made in the proposal, and shall include the name, address, phone number and e-mail address of the person(s) to contact who will be authorized to represent your firm.

3.0.2 Minimum Experience Qualifications Summary

A statement of professional experience and ability.

3.0.3 Management/Method of Operation

Provide detailed description outlining your firm's approach to provide the service. Highlight innovative ideas your firm may have to provide to the City and describe in detail your procedures and management techniques.

3.0.4 <u>References</u>

Provide a list of references with current contact person, e-mail address and phone number who may be contacted regarding firm performance.

3.0.5 Financial Statement

The proponent must be able to demonstrate a good record of performance and have sufficient financial resources to ensure that they can satisfactorily provide the services required herein.

Proponent shall submit a full and detailed presentation of the true condition of the proponent's assets, liabilities and net worth. The report should include a balance sheet and income statement. If the proponent is a new partnership or joint venture, individual financial statements must be submitted for each general partner or joint venture thereof. If firm is a publicly held corporation, the most current annual report should be submitted.

Any proponent who, at the time of submission, is involved in an ongoing bankruptcy as a debtor, or in a reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver has been appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of the proponent under federal bankruptcy law or any state insolvency, may be declared non-responsive.

3.0.6 Corporate Structure, Organization

Describe how your firm is organized, noting major divisions and any parent/holding companies, as well as brief history of the firm and all personnel potentially to be involved in the project including all sub-consultants. Designate the Principal in

Charge and other key personnel. Include résumés. Also provide a description of the experience your firm has had with similar processes.

3.0.7 <u>Proposal Fee (Under Separate Cover)</u>

Provide detailed basic fee structure and break-down of any other charges related to your firm's proposal. Finalist's fee structure may be subject to negotiation.

- **3.0.8** The proposal must be submitted, typewritten on 8½" X 11" white paper and must be bound in a secure manner.
- **3.0.9** Material and data not specifically requested for consideration, but which the proponent wishes to submit must not appear with the Proposal, but may appear only in an "Additional Data" section. This has specific reference to the following types of data:

Generalized narrative of supplementary information; and Supplementary graphic material

- **3.0.10** All proposals must be signed with the full name of the proponent, if an individual; by an authorized general partner, if a partnership; or by an authorized officer, if a corporation.
- **3.0.11** When proposals are signed by an agent other than an officer of a corporation or a member of a general partnership, a power of attorney authorizing the signature must be submitted with the proposal.
- **3.0.12** If the proposal is submitted by a partnership or joint venture, the Statement of Personal History attached to the Proposal must be completed by each general partner or joint venture thereof. If the proposal is submitted by a corporation, the Statement must be completed by each principal officer of said corporation.
- **3.0.13** The original proposal must have wet ink signatures. Modification to a proposal after the proposal submittal deadline will not be accepted by the City.

3.1 EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA

The City is interested in selecting a qualified firm with the ability to provide **MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY**. A key component for the successful firm will be the ability to meet the City's performance desires while minimizing the cost.

The Evaluation Panel will consist of City of Stockton staff and any other person(s) designated by the City. Following review of the proposals, the Panel may invite one or more proponents to make an oral presentation. During these presentations, the proponent will be allowed to present such information as may be appropriate

in order that the Panel can effectively and objectively analyze all materials and documentation submitted as part of the proposals.

Each firm must be represented by an individual who will be the prime contact person to the City and any other individuals whom the firm may select. The highest-rated proposal(s) will then be further scrutinized through financial analysis and reference checks.

To that end, the Panel will evaluate the proposals based on, but not limited to, the following criteria:

- 1. Proponent's ability to provide all services as outlined in the Scope of Services;
- 2. Related experience with similar projects, company background and personnel qualifications;
- 3. Proponent's Fee Schedule: completed and signed (under separate sealed cover);
- 4. Proponent's Agreement;
- 5. Non-Collusion Affidavit;
- 6. References;
- 7. Any other criteria as best suits the City of Stockton.

3.2 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The cost of preparing and submitting a proposal is the sole responsibility of the proponent and shall not be chargeable in any manner to the City of Stockton.

3.3 PROPONENT CONTACT

Proponent shall provide the name, address, e-mail address and telephone number of an individual in their organization to whom notices and inquiries by the City should be directed as part of this proposal.

3.4 CITY'S USE OF PROPOSAL MATERIAL

All material submitted in or with the proposal shall become the property of the City, unless it is clearly marked as proprietary information. The City reserves the right to use any ideas presented in the proposals, without compensation paid to the Firm. Selection or rejection of the proposal shall not affect this right.

3.5 REJECTION OF PROPOSAL

The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted and to request additional information from the Proponent. The award will be made to the firm which, in the opinion of the City, is best qualified.

PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS

A) RFP – MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES FEE STUDY

B) PUR 20-022

C) SEPTEMBER 24, 2020

COMPANY NAME:	
---------------	--

CONTACT NAME: _____

ADDRESS: _____

TELEPHONE NUMBER: _____

EMAIL: _____

PROPONENT'S AGREEMENT

In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the proponent agrees that:

- 1. They have carefully examined the Scope of Work and all other provisions of this document and understand the meaning, intent and requirements of same.
- 2. They will enter into contract negotiations and furnish the services specified.
- 3. They have signed and notarized the attached Non-Collusion Affidavit form, whether individual, corporate or partnership. Must be 'A Jurat' notarization.
- 4. They have reviewed all clarifications/questions/answers on the City's website at <u>www.stocktonca.gov/adminbid</u>.
- 5. Confidentiality: Successful Proponent hereby acknowledges that information provided by the City of Stockton is personal and confidential and shall not be used for any purpose other than the original intent outlined in the Request for Proposal. Breach of confidentiality shall be just cause for immediate termination of contract agreement.

FIRM	ADDRESS
SIGNED BY	TITLE OR AGENCY
TELEPHONE NO./FAX NO.	DATE
E-MAIL ADDRESS	

	DLLUSION
No. 1 AFFIDAVIT FOR INDIVIDU STATE OF CALIFORNIA,	
County of	;55.)
(insert)	
not named herein; that said Proponent has not colluded, conspired, connived or	
	(Signature Individual Proponent)
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this day of, proved to me on the basis	, 20, 20
Seal	_
Signature	_
No. 2 AFFIDAVIT FOR CORPOR STATE OF CALIFORNIA, County of)ss.
they are the of	a corporation,
named herein; that said Proponent has not colluded, conspired, connived or ag	ne and not sham or collusive, or made in the interest or behalf of any person not reed, directly or indirectly with, or induced or solicited any other bid or person, poration shall or should refrain from bidding; and has not in any manner sought any person interested in said improvement, or over any other Proponent.
	(Signature Corporation Proponent)
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this day of	
by, proved to me on the basis	s of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who appeared before me.
Seal	_
Signature	
No. 3 AFFIDAVIT FOR FIRM, ASSOCIA	
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, County of)ss)
County of(insert)	
each being first duly sworn, depose and say: That they are a member of the fir	, accordition of ac partnership
each being first dury sworn, depose and say: That they are a member of the fir	in, association of co-partnership,
designated as	who is the party making the foregoing bid; that the other partner, or partners, are that such bid is genuine and not sham or collusive, or made
in the interest or behalf of any person not named herein; that said Proponen	t has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly with, or d refrain from proposing; and has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure
	(Signature)
	(Signature)
Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this day of, proved to me on the basis	s of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who appeared before me.
Seal	_
Signature	-

EXHIBIT 'A' – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. **Commercial General Liability** (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than **\$1,000,000** per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. **Automobile Liability**: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (nonowned), with limit no less than **\$1,000,000** per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. **Workers' Compensation** insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than **\$1,000,000** per accident for bodily injury or disease. (Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no employees)

4. **Professional Liability** (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession, with limit no less than **\$2,000,000** per occurrence or claim, **\$2,000,000** aggregate. (If Claims-made, see below.)

If the Consultant maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the City of Stockton requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City of Stockton.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additional Insured Status

The City of Stockton, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General

liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). Additional insured Name of Organization shall read "City of Stockton, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers." Policy shall cover City of Stockton, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for all locations work is done under this contract.

Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be endorsed as primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the City of Stockton, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or selfinsurance maintained by the City of Stockton, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. The City of Stockton does not accept endorsements limiting the Consultant's insurance coverage to the sole negligence of the Named Insured.

Notice of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the City of Stockton.

Waiver of Subrogation

Consultant hereby grants to City of Stockton a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said Consultant may acquire against the City of Stockton by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the City of Stockton has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City of Stockton Risk Services. The City of Stockton may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or City of Stockton.

Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City of Stockton.

Claims Made Policies (note – applicable only to professional li ability)

If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work .

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not **replaced with another claimsmade policy form with a Retroactive Date** prior to the contract effective date, the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage

Consultant shall furnish the City of Stockton with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the City of Stockton before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's obligation to provide them. The City of Stockton reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Consultant shall, prior to the commencement of work under this Agreement, provide the City of Stockton with a copy of its declarations page(s) and endorsement page(s) for each of the required policies.

Subcontractors

Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that City of Stockton is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances

City of Stockton reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Certificate Holder Address

Proper address for mailing certificates, endorsements and notices shall be:

City of Stockton Attn: City Risk Services 425 N El Dorado Street Stockton, CA 95202

EXHIBIT 'B' – SAMPLE CONTRACT

CITY OF STOCKTON STANDARD AGREEMENT

Agreement Number:

1. This Agreement is entered into between the City of Stockton ("City") and ________ ("Contractor") to provide _______ as set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

2. The term of this Agreement is as follows, unless amended as described in Exhibit A and Exhibit C section 8: Commences on: _____ Terminates on: _____

3. The maximum not to exceed amount to be paid to Contractor for the term of this Agreement, including if authorized, reimbursement of expenses, is: \$_____

4. The complete Agreement consists of all the following Agreement documents which by reference are incorporated and made a part of this Agreement. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

- (a) Exhibit A Statement of Work
- (b) Exhibit B Insurance
- (c) Exhibit C General Terms & Conditions
- (d) Exhibit D Professional Services Special Terms & Conditions
- (e) Exhibit E Compensation Schedule
- (f) Exhibit F Timeline
- (g) Exhibit G Special Funding Terms & Conditions FEMA (If applicable check "Yes")

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized parties have executed this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR

Contractor's Name (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.):

Authorized Signature

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing

Address

CITY OF STOCKTON

Harry Black, City Manager

ATTEST:

Eliza R. Garza CMC, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: John M. Luebberke, City Attorney BY: Date

Date

EXHIBIT A

STATEMENT OF WORK

1. <u>Project Objectives</u>

1.1 (Type the Project objectives)

2. <u>Project Scope</u>

2.1 (Type the Project Scope in detail including location of Work, resources, equipment and facilities needed.)

3. <u>Specifications</u>

3.1 (If applicable and the project has specifications, insert the specifications into this section.)

4. <u>Major Deliverables</u>

4.1 (Type the major deliverables in detail)

5. <u>Tasks That Support the Deliverables</u>

5.1 (In detail, describe the Tasks that support the deliverables and which party will complete them.)

6. Internal and External Standards and Guidelines

6.1 (If applicable and the project has internal and/or external standards or guidelines, insert them into this section.)

7. <u>Criteria of Acceptance for Deliverables</u>

7.1 (Type criteria used to determine whether deliverables are acceptable, how they will be accepted, and who will accept them.)

8. <u>Notices</u>

Pursuant to Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions, Paragraph 15 – Notices, the mailing address for all required notices is as follows:

Contractor:

City: City of Stockton Attn: City Manager ____

425 N. El Dorado Street Stockton, CA 95202

9. <u>Key Personnel</u>

(If applicable, type the name and contact information Key Personnel working on the Project.)

10. Option to Renew.

(If an option to renew is applicable, keep this clause and type the specifics as to how many renewal terms e.g. two one-year renewals, etc.)

The term of the Agreement may be extended up to _____by a written amendment executed by both parties. However, the total term of the Agreement including the extended term shall not exceed ___years.

EXHIBIT B

INSURANCE

(RESERVED FOR CITY'S INSURANCE PROVISIONS APPROVED BY RISK)

EXHIBIT C

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. <u>Goods, Equipment and Services.</u> Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall provide to City the services described in Exhibit A of the Agreement. Contractor shall provide said services at the time, place and in the manner specified in Exhibit A of the Agreement.

2. <u>City Assistance, Facilities, Equipment and Clerical Support.</u> Except as set forth in Exhibit A, Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish and maintain all facilities and equipment that may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement. If applicable, City shall furnish to Contractor only the facilities and equipment listed in Exhibit A to the Agreement.

3. <u>**Compensation**</u>. City shall pay Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement as described more particularly in Exhibit A and Exhibit E to the Agreement.

- 3.1 Invoices submitted by Contractor to City must contain a brief description of work performed, time spent and City reference number. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of Contractor's invoice, City will review invoice, and if acceptable make payment on approved invoice.
- 3.2 Upon completion of work and acceptance by City, Contractor shall have sixty (60) days in which to submit final invoicing for payment. An extension may be granted by City upon receiving a written request thirty (30) days in advance of said time limitation. The City shall have no obligation or liability to pay any invoice for work performed which the Contractor fails or neglects to submit within sixty (60) days, or any extension thereof granted by the City, after the work is accepted by the City.

4. <u>Sufficiency of Contractor's Work</u>. All Contractor services, work, and deliverables shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner with due diligence in accordance with the degree of skill normally exercised by similar contractors supplying services and work of a similar nature, and in conformance with applicable laws, codes and professional standards. Contractor's work shall be adequate and sufficient to meet the purposes of this Agreement.

5. <u>Ownership of Work</u>. All reports, work product, all other documents completed or partially completed by Contractor or its approved subcontractors, in performance of this Agreement, and if applicable, drawings, designs, and plan review comments shall become the property of the City. Any and all copyrightable subject matter in all materials is hereby assigned to the City and the Contractor and its approved subcontractors agree to execute any additional documents that may be necessary to evidence such assignment. All materials shall be delivered to the City upon completion or termination of the work under this Agreement. If any materials are lost, damaged or destroyed before

final delivery to the City, the Contractor shall replace them at its own expense. Contractor and its approved subcontractors shall keep materials confidential. Materials shall not be used for purposes other than performance of services under this Agreement and shall not be disclosed to anyone not connected with these services, unless the City provides prior written consent.

6. <u>Timeliness.</u> Time is of the essence in this Agreement. Further, Contractor acknowledges that the failure of Contractor to comply with the time limits described in Exhibit A and Exhibit F may result in economic or other losses to the City.

7. <u>Changes</u>. Both parties to this Agreement understand that it may become desirable or necessary during the term of this Agreement for City to modify the scope of services provided for under this Agreement. Any material extension or change in the scope of work shall be discussed with City and the change and cost shall be memorialized in a written amendment to the original contract prior to the performance of the additional work. Until the amendment is so executed, City will not be responsible to pay any charges Contractor may incur in performing such additional services, and Contractor shall not be required to perform any such additional services.

8. <u>Amendment.</u> No variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless an amendment is made in writing and signed by both parties.

9. <u>Contractor's Status</u>.

9.1 In performing the obligations set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall have the status of an independent contractor and Contractor shall not be considered to be an employee of the City for any purpose. All persons working for or under the direction of Contractor are its agents and employees and are not agents or employees of City. Contractor by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of City. Except as expressly provided in Exhibit A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the City. No agent, officer or employee of the City is to be considered an employee of the Contractor. It is understood by both Contractor and City that this Agreement shall not be construed or considered under any circumstances to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.

9.2 Contractor shall determine the method, details and means of performing the work and services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible to City only for the requirements and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to City's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. Contractor has control over the manner and means of performing the services under this Agreement. If necessary, Contractor has the responsibility for employing other persons or firms to assist Contractor in fulfilling the terms and obligations under this Agreement.

9.3 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Contractor, such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Contractor. All terms of employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or any other term of employment or requirements of law shall be determined by the Contractor.

9.4 It is further understood and agreed that Contractor must issue W-2 forms or other forms as required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Contractor's assigned personnel under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

10. <u>Subcontractor.</u>

10.1 Subcontractors shall not be recognized as having any direct or contractual relationship with City. Contractor shall be responsible for the work of subcontractors, which shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement. Subcontractors will be provided with a copy of the Agreement and be bound by its terms. Contractor is responsible to City for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and persons directly or indirectly employed by them.

10.2 If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by Contractor, such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of Contractor. All terms of employment including hours, wages working conditions, discipline, hiring, and discharging or any other term of employment or requirement of law shall be determined by Contractor.

10.3 It is further understood and agreed that Contractor must issue W-2 forms or other forms as required by law for income and employment tax purposes for all of Contractor's personnel.

11. Termination.

11.1 <u>Termination for Convenience of City</u>. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time by mailing a notice in writing to Contractor. The Agreement shall then be deemed terminated, and no further work shall be performed by Contractor. If the Agreement is so terminated, the Contractor shall be paid for the work actually completed at the time the notice of termination is received.

11.2 Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any of its provisions, the other party, at that party's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written notification to the other party.

11.3 <u>Funding- Non-Appropriation.</u> It is mutually understood between the Parties that payment to the Contractor for performance shall be dependent upon the availability of appropriations by the City Council for the purposes of this Agreement. No legal liability on the part of the City for any payment may arise under this Agreement until funds are made available and until the Contractor has received funding availability, which will be confirmed in writing. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted, or if the City loses

funding for any reason, the City, in its sole discretion, shall have the option to either (a) cause this Agreement to be canceled or terminated pursuant to applicable provisions of the Agreement; or (b) offer to amend the Agreement to reflect the reduced funding for this Agreement.

12. <u>Non-Assignability</u>. The Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer this Agreement or any interest or obligation in the Agreement without the prior written consent of the City, and then only upon such terms and conditions as City may set forth in writing. Contractor shall be solely responsible for reimbursing subcontractors.

13. <u>Indemnity and Hold Harmless</u>. To the fullest extent permitted by law,

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify the City of Stockton, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, against any and all liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising from all acts or omissions of contractor or its officers, agents, or employees in rendering services under this contract; excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses arising from the City of Stockton's sole negligence or willful acts. The duty to defend and the duty to indemnify are separate and distinct obligations. The indemnification obligations of this section shall survive the termination of this agreement.

14. <u>Insurance</u>. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect at its own cost and expense the insurance coverage as set forth in the attached Exhibit B to this Agreement and shall otherwise comply with the other provisions of Exhibit B to this Agreement.

15. <u>Notices</u>. All notices herein required shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

16. <u>Conformance to Applicable Laws.</u> Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and Municipal laws, rules, and ordinances. Contractor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons or in the provision of services under this Agreement on the basis of any legally protected classification, including race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex or religion of such person.

17. <u>Licenses, Certifications and Permits</u>. Prior to the City's execution of this Agreement and prior to the Contractor's engaging in any operation or activity set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall obtain a City of Stockton business license, which must be kept in effect during the term of this Agreement. Contractor covenants that it has obtained all certificates, licenses, permits and the like required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such licenses, certificates and permits shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement.

18. <u>Records and Audits</u>.

Contractor shall maintain all records regarding this Agreement and the services performed for a period of three (3) years from the date that final payment is made. At any time during normal business hours, the records shall be made available to the City

to inspect and audit. To the extent Contractor renders services on a time and materials basis, Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate accounting records, in a form prescribed by City or, if not prescribed by City, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, such records to include, but not be limited to, payroll records, attendance cards, time sheets, and job summaries.

19. <u>**Confidentiality**</u>. Contractor shall exercise reasonable precautions to prevent the unauthorized disclosure and use of City reports, information or conclusions.

20. <u>Conflicts of Interest</u>. Contractor covenants that other than this Agreement, Contractor has no financial interest with any official, employee or other representative of the City. Contractor and its principals do not have any financial interest in real property, sources of income or investment that would be affected in any manner of degree by the performance of Contractor's services under this Agreement. If such an interest arises, Contractor shall immediately notify the City.

21. <u>**Waiver**</u>. In the event either City or Contractor at any time waive any breach of this Agreement by the other, such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of any other or succeeding breach of this Agreement, whether of the same or of any other covenant, condition or obligation. No payment, partial payment, acceptance, or partial acceptance by City shall operate as a waiver on the part of City of any of its rights under this Agreement.

22. <u>**Governing Law**</u>. California law shall govern any legal action pursuant to this Agreement with venue for all claims in the Superior Court of the County of San Joaquin, Stockton Branch or, where applicable, in the Federal District Court of California, Eastern District, Sacramento Division.

23. <u>No Personal Liability</u>. No official or employee of City shall be personally liable to Contractor in the event of any default or breach by the City or for any amount due Contractor.

24. <u>Severability.</u> If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state or city statue, ordinance or regulation the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application thereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this Agreement are severable.

25. <u>Non-Discrimination.</u> During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its officers, employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, rule or regulation against any employee, applicant for employment or person receiving services under this Agreement because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition (including genetic characteristics), marital status, age, political affiliation, sex or sexual orientation, family and medical care leave, pregnancy leave, or

disability leave. Contractor and its officers, employees, agents, representative or subcontractors shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations related to non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including without limitation the City's nondiscrimination policy; the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code sections 12990 (et seq.); California Labor Code sections 1101, 1102 and 1102.1; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), as amended; and all applicable regulations promulgated in the California Code of Regulation or Code of Federal Regulations. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires that "no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance." (42 USC Section 2000d). http://www.dol.gov/oasam/regs/statutes/titlevi.htm. The City requires compliance with the requirements of Title VI in all of its programs and activities regardless of funding source.

26. <u>Force Majeure</u>. Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from acts of God, acts of civil or military authority, terrorism, fire, flood, strikes, war, epidemics, pandemics, shortage of power or other acts or causes reasonably beyond the control of that party. The party experiencing the force majeure event agrees to give the other party notice promptly following the occurrence of a force majeure event, and to use diligent efforts to re-commence performance as promptly as commercially practicable.

27. <u>**Taxes and Charges**</u>. Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all taxes, fees, contributions or charges applicable to the conduct of the Contractor's business.

28. <u>**Cumulative Rights.**</u> Any specific right or remedy provided in this Agreement will not be exclusive but will be cumulative of all other rights and remedies to which may be legally entitled.

29. <u>Advice of Attorney.</u> Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it has received independent legal advice from its attorneys or the opportunity to seek such advice.

30. <u>Heading Not Controlling.</u> Headings used in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.

31. Entire Agreement, Integration, and Modification.

31.1 This Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement between Contractor and the City; supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral between the parties and may be amended only by a written Amendment signed by the Contractor and City Manager.

31.2 All Exhibits to this Agreement and this Agreement are intended to be construed as a single document.

32. <u>**Counterparts.**</u> This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. All counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one agreement.

33. <u>Authority.</u> The individual(s) executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the legal capacity and authority to do so on behalf of their respective legal entities.

EXHIBIT D

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. <u>**Definitions.**</u> The following words and phrases have the following meanings for purposes of this Agreement:

1.1 "Services" means, collectively, the services, duties and responsibilities described in Exhibit A of this Agreement and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the standard of performance required in this Agreement.

1.2 "Deliverable" means quantifiable goods or services that will be provided upon completion of a project. A deliverable is any tangible material, work or thing delivered by one party to the other, including associated technical documentation. A deliverable can be tangible or intangible parts of the development process, and often are specified functions or characteristics of the project.

2. <u>General</u>. The following terms and conditions are applicable for the Professional Services only. The special conditions shall be read in conjunction with the Standard Agreement, General Terms and Conditions ("GTC") Exhibit C, and all other Exhibits identified in the Standard Agreement.

2.1 Where any portion of the GTC is in conflict to or at variance with any provisions of the Special Conditions of the Agreement, then unless a different intention stated, the provision(s) of the Special Conditions of the Agreement shall be deemed to override the provision(s) of GTC only to the extent that such conflict or variations in the Special Conditions of the Agreement are not possible of being reconciled with the provisions of the GTC.

2.2 In the case of modification of a part or provision of the GTC, the unaltered part or provision, or both shall remain in effect. The Special Conditions shall relate to a particular project and be peculiar to that project but shall not weaken the character or intent of the GTC.

3. <u>Time for Performance.</u>

3.1 Contractor shall perform the services according to the schedule contained in Exhibit F.

3.2 Timeliness of Performance i) Contractor shall provide the Services, and Deliverables within the term and within the time limits required under this Agreement, pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit F. ii) Neither Contractor nor Contractor's agents, employees nor subcontractors are entitled to any damages from the City, nor is any party entitled to be reimbursed by the City, for damages, charges or other losses or expenses incurred by Contractor by reason of delays or hindrances in the performance of the Services, whether or not caused by the City.

4. <u>Standard of Performance</u>

In addition to Exhibit C, Section 4 and 17, Contractor agrees as follows:

4.1 Contractor's Services shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Contractor's profession currently practicing under similar conditions. Contractor shall comply with the profession's standard of performance, applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards. By delivery of completed work, Contractor certifies that the work conforms to the requirements of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws. If Contractor is retained to perform services requiring a license, certification, registration or other similar requirement under California law, Contractor shall maintain that license, certification, registration or other similar requirement throughout the term of this Agreement.

4.2 Contractor acknowledges that it is entrusted with or has access to valuable and confidential information and records of the City and with respect to that information, Contractor agrees to be held to the standard of care of a fiduciary. Contractor shall assure that all services that require the exercise of professional skills or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable discipline and appropriately licensed, if required by law. Contractor must provide copies of any such licenses. Contractor remains responsible for the professional and technical accuracy of all Services or Deliverables furnished, whether by Contractor or its subcontractors or others on its behalf. All Deliverables must be prepared in a form and content satisfactory to the Using Agency and delivered in a timely manner consistent with the requirements of this Agreement.

4.3 If Contractor fails to comply with the foregoing standards, Contractor must perform again, at its own expense, all Services required to be re-performed as a direct or indirect result of that failure. Any review, approval, acceptance or payment for any of the Services by the City does not relieve Contractor of its responsibility for the professional skill and care and technical accuracy of its Services and Deliverables. This provision in no way limits the City's rights against Contractor either under this Agreement, at law or in equity.

5. <u>Compensation</u>

5.1 In addition to Section 3 Compensation in Exhibit C – GTC, the Contractor shall be compensated for the services provided under this Agreement as follows:

5.1.1 Contractor shall be compensated for services rendered and accepted under this Agreement and shall be paid monthly, in arrears on a not to exceed

basis, based upon the rates set forth in Exhibit E attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement. Contractor may vary the compensation for each task in Exhibit E provided that the total project compensation listed in Exhibit E and the Standard Agreement is not exceeded.

6. <u>Personnel</u>

6.1 None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted without the prior written approval of the City. Any work or services subcontracted hereunder shall be specified by written agreement and shall be subject to each provision of this Agreement. Contractor shall provide subcontractor a copy of this fully executed Agreement.

6.2 Contractor agrees to assign only competent personnel according to the reasonable and customary standards of training and experience in the relevant field to perform services under this Agreement. Failure to assign such competent personnel shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement. The payment made to Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be the full and complete compensation to which Contractor and Contractor's officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors are entitled for performance of any work under this Agreement. Neither Contractor nor Contractor's officers or employees are entitled to any salary or wages, or retirement, health, leave or other fringe benefits applicable to employees of the City. The City will not make any federal or state tax withholdings on behalf of Contractor. The City shall not be required to pay any workers' compensation insurance on behalf of Contractor. Contractor shall pay, when and as due, any and all taxes incurred as a result of Contractor's compensation hereunder, including estimated taxes, and shall provide City with proof of such payments upon request.

6.3 <u>Key Personnel</u>: Because of the special skills required to satisfy the requirements of this Agreement, Contractor shall not reassign or replace key personnel without the written consent of the City, which consent the City will not unreasonably withhold. "key personnel" means those job titles and the persons assigned to those positions in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The City may at any time in writing notify Contractor that the City will no longer accept performance of Services under this Agreement by one or more Key Personnel listed. Upon that notice Contractor shall immediately suspend the services of the key person or persons and must replace him or them in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. A list of key personnel is found in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

7. <u>Reports and Information</u>

Contractor shall at such times and in such forms as the City may require furnish the City such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, the costs and obligations incurred or to be incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters are covered by this Agreement as specified in Exhibit A and Exhibit E.

8. Findings Confidential

All of the reports, information, data, et cetera, prepared or assembled by the Contractor under this Agreement are confidential and the Contractor agrees that they shall not be made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of the City. Contractor shall not be required under the provisions of this paragraph to keep confidential any data or information which is or becomes publicly available, is required by applicable law or by proper legal or governmental authority, is already rightfully in the Contractor's possession without obligation of confidentiality, is independently developed by Contractor outside the scope of this Agreement or is rightfully obtained from third parties. Contractor shall give City prompt notice of any such legal or governmental demand and reasonably cooperate with City in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to contest such required disclosure.

9. <u>Copyright</u>

No materials, including but not limited to reports, maps, or documents produced as a result of this Agreement, in whole or in part, shall be available to Contractor for copyright purposes. Any such materials produced as a result of this Agreement that might be subject to copyright shall be the property of the City and all such rights shall belong to the City, and the City shall be sole and exclusive entity who may exercise such rights.

10. Deliverables

Contractor shall prepare or provide to the City various Deliverables. "Deliverables" include work product, such as written reviews, recommendations, reports and analyses, produced by Contractor for the City. The City may reject Deliverables that do not include relevant information or data, or do not include all documents or other materials specified in this Agreement or reasonably necessary for the purpose for which the City made this Agreement or for which the City intends to use the Deliverables. If the City determines that Contractor has failed to comply with the foregoing standards, it has 30 days from the discovery to notify Contractor of its failure. If Contractor does not correct the failure, or if it is possible to do so, within 30 days after receipt of notice from the City specifying the failure, then the City, by written notice, may treat the failure as a default of this Agreement. Partial or incomplete Deliverables may be accepted for review only when required for a specific and well-defined purpose and when consented to in advance by the City. Such Deliverables will not be considered as satisfying the requirements of this Agreement and partial or incomplete Deliverables in no way relieve Contractor of its commitments under this Agreement.

EXHIBIT E

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

The Contractor shall be compensated for the services identified in Exhibit A, Exhibit C, and Exhibit D to this Agreement as follows:

1. <u>Project Price</u>

1.1 The maximum the Contractor shall be paid on this Agreement is (hereafter the "not to exceed" amount). The "not to exceed" amount includes all payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement, including City approved reimbursable expenses, if any. Nothing in this Agreement requires the City to pay for work that does not meet the Standard of Performance identified in Exhibit D section 4 or other requirements of this Agreement.

1.2 <u>Standard Reimbursable Items</u>: Only the reimbursable items identified in Exhibit A, C, and D (Compensation), shall be compensated to the Contractor. Reimbursable expenses will be reimbursed without markup. Fees plus reimbursable expenses shall not exceed the amount set forth in section 1.1 of this Exhibit and a copy of the original invoice for the items listed in i, ii or iii below shall be attached to the invoice submitted to the City for reimbursement. Payments shall be based upon work documents submitted by the Contractor to the City and accepted by the City as being satisfactory to City's needs. The City shall not pay a markup on any of the items listed in i, ii or iii. Additionally, items such a telephone, fax, postage or freight are already included in the billable hourly rate. Contractor shall be reimbursed the direct expenses, which are the actual cost of the following items that are reasonable, necessary and actually incurred, by the Contractor in connection with the services:

- i. Expenses, fees or charges for printing, reproduction or binding of documents at actual costs with no markup added to the actual cost.
- ii. Any filing fees, permit fees, or other fees paid or advanced by the Contractor at actual costs with no markup added to the actual cost.
- iii. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed in accordance with the City's travel policy, which is incorporated herein by reference.
 Reimbursement shall be made at actual costs with no markup added to the actual cost.

1.3 The Contractor shall be entitled to receive payments for its work performed pursuant to the Agreement. The City will pay Contractor based on invoices for acceptable work performed and approved until the "not to exceed" amount is reached. Thereafter, Contractor must complete services based on the Agreement without additional compensation unless there is a material change to the Statement of Work and Scope by a written Amendment.

1.4 If work is completed before the "not to exceed" amount is reached, the Contractor's compensation will be based on the Contractor's invoices previously submitted for acceptable work performed and approved.

1.5 <u>Subcontractor Costs</u>: Compensation for subcontractors shall be limited to the same restrictions imposed on the Contractor. Maximum markup Contractor may apply to subcontractor fees, minus reimbursable expenses, shall not exceed _____%.

2. <u>**Task Price**</u>. Below is the price for the services and reimbursable expenses as described in Exhibit A of this Agreement.

Task	Description	Task Price
1		\$
2		\$
3		\$
	TOTAL PRICE	\$

3. <u>Hourly Rates.</u> The following is a list of hourly billable rates that Contractor shall apply for additional services requested of the Contractor. Contractor shall be compensated based on the hourly rates set forth below, on a time and material basis for those services that are within the general scope of services of this Agreement, but beyond the description of services required under Exhibit A, and all services are reasonably necessary to complete the standards of performance required by this Agreement. Any changes and related fees shall be mutually agreed upon between the parties by a written amendment to this Agreement.

Hourly Billable Rate Schedule

Title	Role on Project	Hourly Billable Rates
		\$
		\$
		\$
		\$
		\$
		\$
		\$

4. <u>Additional Fees.</u> Should an amendment to the Agreement be issued for additional services that require the following items, the unit prices are as follows:

Title	Unit Price
	\$

5. <u>Invoice to Address.</u> Each invoice submitted shall identify the specific task(s) listed in Exhibit A and this Exhibit, and the completed work product/deliverable for the agreed upon price listed in this Exhibit. Invoices shall be submitted to the below address:

City of Stockton _____ Department Attention: _____ 425 N. El Dorado Street Stockton, CA 95202

EXHIBIT F

TIMELINE

1. Consultant shall complete the requested services identified in Exhibit A as follows:

1.1 **TIMELINE FOR COMPLETION OF WORK**

1.1.1	(insert deliverable title)	(insert duration i.e. 1 week)
1.1.2	(insert deliverable title)	(insert duration i.e. 1 day)
1.1.3	(insert deliverable title)	(insert duration i.e. 3 weeks)

EXHIBIT G

SPECIAL FUNDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

FEDERAL FUNDS

Federal regulations (2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II) require the City to include certain contract clauses in this agreement.

The US Department of Homeland Security (DHS) – Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) recommends other certain contract clauses be included.

Based on the table below, any clause identified with a check mark $(v_{)}$ next to it is hereby incorporated into this contract agreement. The full language of each clause can be found in this EXHIBIT G.

Chack (1a)

CONTRACT TYPES

1. Construction Contracts		Applicable	
1.1 Equal Employment Opportunity	Cla	uses	
1.2 Davis Bacon Act	Construction		
1.3 Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act	1.1		
2. All Contracts			
2.1 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act	1.3		
2.2 Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act			
2.3 Debarment and Suspension	All Co	ntracts	
2.4 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment	2.1		
2.5 Procurement of Recovered Materials	2.2		
2.6 Access to Records	2.3		
2.7 DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags	2.4		
2.8 <u>Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations and Executive</u> Orders	2.5		
2.9 No Obligation by Federal Government	2.6		
2.10 Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or	2.7		
Related Acts	2.8		
	2.9		
Checked provisions are hereby incorporated into the contract	2.10		

Checked provisions are hereby incorporated into the contract agreement.

Following are the FEMA requirement or recommendation clauses listed above for contract incorporation.

1.1 Equal Employment Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order

11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor

debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

1.2 Compliance with Davis-Bacon Act

- a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141- 3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable.
- b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.
- c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week.

1.3 Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act

a. <u>Contractor</u>. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract.

b. <u>Subcontracts</u>. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.

c. <u>Breach</u>. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

2.1 Compliance with Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

(1) <u>Overtime requirements</u>. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or

mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) <u>Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages</u>. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, in the sum of \$27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(3) <u>Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages</u>. The (write in the name of the Federal agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section.

(4) <u>Subcontracts</u>. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of this section. **2.2 Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act**

Clean Air Act

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of applicant entering into the contract) and understands and agrees that the (name of the applicant entering into

the contract) will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

3. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of the applicant entering into the contract) and understands and agrees that the (name of the applicant entering into the contract) will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

3. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

2.3 Debarment and Suspension

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor's principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

(2) The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

(3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by (insert name of recipient/subrecipient/applicant). If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to (insert name of recipient/subrecipient/applicant), the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further

agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

2.4 Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended)

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) to the awarding agency.

<u>Required Certification.</u> If applicable, contractors must sign and submit to the non-federal entity the following certification found at APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18:

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 – CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard FormLLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor,_______, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap.38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official

Date:

2.5 Procurement of Recovered Materials

In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—

- 1. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
- 2. Meeting contract performance requirements; or
- 3. At a reasonable price.

Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site:

https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program

The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.

2.6 Access to Records

The following access to records requirements apply to this contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the City of Stockton, [insert name of recipient], the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their

authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

- (2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- (3) The Contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City of Stockton and the Contractor acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the FEMA Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States.

2.7 DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre-approval

2.8 Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders

This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.

2.9 No Obligation by Federal Government

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

2.10 Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts

The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.